
   

 
 

 

Nottingham City Council 

Audit Committee 

 
Date: Friday, 27 November 2020 
 
Time:  10.30 am 
 
Place: Remote - To be held remotely via Zoom - 

https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Kate Morris   Direct Dial: 0115 876 4353 
 

   
1  Apologies  

 
 

2  Declarations of Interest  
 

 

3  Minutes  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2020 
 

3 - 14 

4  Work Programme and Action Log  
To note 
 

15 - 18 

5  Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government Rapid 
Non Statutory Review of Nottingham City Council  
Report of the Chief Executive 
 

19 - 22 

6  Report in the Public Interest and Action Plan - Update  
Report of the Director of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 

23 - 26 

7  External Audit Update  
Verbal update from the External Auditors 
 

Verbal 
Report 

8  Companies Financial Governance Framework  
Report of the Strategic Director of Finance  
 

27 - 36 

9  Audit Committee Working Groups  
Report of the Strategic Director of Finance 
 

37 - 42 

Public Document Pack



10  Additional Meeting Date  
To agree to meet on the following, additional Fridays at 10.30am: 
 
18 December 2020 
29 January 2021  
 

 

11  Exclusion of the Public  
To consider excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining item(s) in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.   
 

 

12  Exempt Minutes  
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 
2020  
 

43 - 44 

13  Companies Financial Governance Framework  
Report of the Strategic Director of Finance  
 

45 - 52 

If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  

 
Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



 

1 

Nottingham City Council  
 
Audit Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Zoom - 
https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil on 25 September 2020 from 
10.02 am - 1.05 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Audra Wynter (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Ayoola (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Graham Chapman 
Councillor Michael Edwards 
Councillor Jay Hayes 
Councillor Jane Lakey 
Councillor Sajid Mohammed 
Councillor Anne Peach 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
 

 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
Councillor David Mellen - Leader of the Council (minute 38 only) 
Mel Barrett - Chief Executive (minute 38 only) 
Helen Lillington - Grant Thornton External Auditors 
Lucy Littlefair - Head of EMSS (minute 42 only) 
Dominic Omelia - Customer Experience Manager (minute 37 only) 
Laura Pattman - Strategic Director of Finance 
Sue Risdall - Team Leader, Technical Finance 
Shail Shah - Head of Audit and Risk 
John Slater - Group Auditor 
Kate Morris - Governance Officer 
 
26  Change in Membership 

 
The Committee noted that Councillors Steve Battlemuch and Lauren O’Grady have 
been replaced by Councillors Jay Hayes and Sajid Mohammed as members of the 
Committee.  
 
27  Appointment of Chair 

 
Resolved to appoint Councillor Audra Wynter as Chair of this Committee for 
the remainder of this municipal year (to April 2021) 
 
28  Appointment of Vice Chair 

 
The Chair of the Committee agreed that this item, although not on the agenda, could 
be considered as a matter of urgency in accordance with Section 100B(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, to ensure compliance with Nottingham City Council’s 
constitution.  
 
Resolved to appoint Councillor Lesley Ayoola as Vice-Chair of this Committee 
for the remainder of this municipal year (to April 2021) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

2 

 
29  Apologies 

 
John Gregory – External Auditor, Grant Thornton.  
 
30  Declaration Of Interests 

 
Councillors declared the following Other Interests 
 
Councillor Audra Wynter –Board member of Nottingham City Transport and 
Nottingham City Homes. 
 
Councillor Andrew Rule – Trustee of the Bridges Trust 
 
Councillor Graham Chapman – Board Member of Nottingham City Transport, and 
member of the Nottinghamshire Pensions Committee (Non-Voting rights)  
 
Councillor Michael Edwards – Board Member of EnviroEnergy 
 
Councillor Anne Peach – Board member of Nottingham Ice Arena and Nottingham 
Play House and member of the Nottinghamshire Pensions Committee (Non-Voting 
rights)  
 
Councillor Jay Hayes – Member of Nottingham Education Trust Board 
 
Councillor Sajid Mohammed – Chair of the Bridges Trust  
 
31  Minutes 

 
With the alteration of Nottingham Pensions Board to Nottinghamshire Pensions 
Committee in minute 13, Declarations of Interests, the minutes of the meeting held on 
31 July 2020 were confirmed as true record and were signed by the Chair. 
 
32  Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 
Theresa Channell, Head of Strategic Finance and Deputy Section 151 Officer, gave a 
verbal update on the Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20, published online 
https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/f/aAXD5ex. The final Statement of Accounts 
2019/20 will be brought to the November Audit Committee for approval and full 
training will be given to Committee members prior to that meeting. Theresa referred 
members of the Committee to further reports they may wish to review, the Draft 
Outturn Report 19/20 approved by Executive Board on 29 June 2020, the Interim 
Budget report  discussed at Executive Board on 22 September 2020. During 
discussions the following points were highlighted:  
 

(a) Nottingham City Council has £1.1billion debt, which is backed by £2.9billion 
assets. The Council is governed by the prudential code and borrows in 
accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy and the Capital and 
Investment Strategy – both published with the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
Work is taking place to refresh these documents in light of the impacts of 
Covid;  
 

Page 4

https://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/f/aAXD5ex


Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

3 

(b) Much of the Council’s debt also comes with funding, such as council housing 
debt and Private Finance Initiatives (PFI). The Council receives Government 
funding for the debt from these schemes. The Council is not allowed to borrow 
for revenue debt and can only borrow against capital and assets;   
 

(c) Un-earmarked reserves stands at £10million. £1.2million of this will be used to 
support the in-year balance, this is detailed in the Interim Budget report. As 
part of the Medium Term Financial Plan this will be replenished; 
 

(d) Aspects of the 18/19 draft accounts are still awaiting full sign off from the 
external auditors. The financial accounts and audit of Robin Hood Energy for 
18/19 have now been concluded and final checks are taking place. Sign off 
has been impacted but this should now take place with in next few weeks; 
 

(e) The deadline for the audit of 19/20 accounts has been extended to the end of 
November 2020. The 19/20 statements have been received from Robin Hood 
Energy and these are included in the draft statement of accounts. The audit of 
these accounts has not yet been concluded, but this is the case for all group 
accounts; 
 

(f) There is a national issue in terms of the value of the assets as a result of the 
Covid 19 pandemic. This will not affect the Housing Revenue account 
properties but investment property valuation may well be impacted. This will 
not be unique to Nottingham City Council;  
 

(g) The cost of servicing this debt is £54million. 
 

The Committee noted the verbal update provided.  
 
33  External Audit Reports 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the Committee agreed to take item 
8 External reports as the next item.  
 
In the absence of John Gregory, Shail Shah, Head of Audit and Risk, and Helen 
Lillington, Grant Thornton, updated the Committee on the progress of the work of the 
External Auditors. The following information was highlighted: 
 

(a) The 18/19 audit and the Value for Money conclusion are still outstanding, 
however the final risk management checks are being progressed;  
 

(b) The 19/20 Audit is well underway with audit staff “onsite” virtually. A progress 
report on the 19/20 Audit and the conclusions for the 18/19 Audit will be 
presented to the November Audit Committee.  

 
The Committee noted the verbal update provided.  
 
34  Audit Committee Annual Report 2019/2020 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the Committee agreed to take item 
10, Audit Committee Annual Report 2019/2020 as the next item. 
 

Page 5



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

4 

Councillor Audra Wynter introduced the Audit Committee Annual Report 2019/20. 
She signposted members of the Committee to page 159 of the published agenda 
pack, which summarises the work of the Committee and to Appendix A detailing the 
work programme. She detailed the desire to focus on a risk-focused approach to the 
work programme and a desire to raise the prominence of the work of the Committee 
within the Council. The following points were highlighted during discussion:  
 

(a) As part of a review into how the Audit Committee works, there is a question of 
independence as set out in the Redmond Report. Committee members 
suggested that the Corporate Governance assessment could be independent. 
This would need to be in line with guidance and the Council would still have to 
gather the evidence;   
 

(b) In order to manage the work programme and the length of meetings and 
ensure that proper time and consideration is given to reports before the 
Committee it would be beneficial to create working groups to look at specific 
areas;  
 

(c) An action log, capturing recommendations and ensuring they are being acted 
on will help to focus the work of the committee;  
 

(d) Councillors within the Committee will be receiving an annual training 
programme to ensure that they are able to consider the items before the 
Committee thoroughly;  
 

(e) Training is needed for all councillors so that recommendations made on risk 
and financial implications are understood by all Councillors, not just Audit 
Committee members. The issue of training is being picked up by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee as part of the work on the Report in the Public 
Interest;  
 

Resolved to: 
(1) Note the work undertaken and approve the report published with the 

agenda at Appendix 1; and 
 

(2) To revert to meeting at 10.30am going forward.   
 
35  Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the Committee agreed to take item 
11, Internal Audit Annual Report 2019/20 as the next item.  
 
Shail Shah, Head of Internal Audit and Risk presented the report outlining the work of 
Internal Audit team to the Committee. The document presented had the Counter 
Fraud strategy and Whistleblowing Policy appended in addition to the Audit Charter. 
He informed the Committee that the Internal Audit team fully comply with the Public 
Sector Audit Standards, and met all performance indicators. During discussion, the 
following points were highlighted: 
 

(a) The Counter Fraud team have been very successful in recovering debt from 
fraud. There has been a small expenditure, but this has led to success in 
identification of income. Further work needs to be progressed to maximise 
debt recovery through this team;  

Page 6



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

5 

 
(b) Within the Whistleblowing Policy the Committee welcomed the options for 

individuals to go outside the system if the internal systems do not respond. 
They questioned whether there was any part of the policy that placed an 
obligation on staff to report issues if they came across them, there is no 
specific mention of an obligation to report. This will be followed up with the 
code of conduct for employees. All colleagues and Councillors have a duty to 
act in the best interests of the Council;  

 
Resolved to  

(1) Add the following items to the newly established action plan:  

 Set up a working group to look at increasing income by reducing 
fraud.  

 To update the whistleblowing policy to install an obligation to 
report. 

 Set up a working group to look at the Capital Programme;  
 

(2) Note the following as detailed in Appendix 1 of the published report: 

 The audit work completed during the year including the use of 
other sources of assurance and reliance upon those other sources 

 The Head of Audit and Risk’s annual opinion 

 The proposed Audit Plan for 2020/21 
 

(3) Approve the internal Audit Charter in Appendix 2 of the published report; 
 

(4) Note the Counter Fraud Strategy in Appendix 3 of the published report; 
and 
 

(5) Note the Whistleblowing Policy in Appendix 4 of the published report.  
 
36  Work Programme 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the Committee agreed to take item 
13, Work Programme, as the next item. 
 
Shail Shah, Head of Audit and Risk introduced the work programme to the 
Committee. The work programme will need to be updated, to include the work of 
newly established work groups. The following points were also highlighted during 
discussion: 
 

(a) There are training sessions planned for Committee members around a number 
of different subjects including Risk and the Statement of Accounts and 
Treasury Management;  
 

(b) The work programme as it currently stands is highly likely to change as a 
result of the recommendations made by the Annual Governance Statement 
and the Public interest report; 
 

(c) An update on Brexit will be coming to the Committee in the new year, the 
Emergency Planning team feel it is most appropriate for the February 2021 
meeting;  
 

Page 7



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

6 

(d) There will also be an item on culture. This item will be linked with work on the 
public interest report and an update will be provided. 
 

The Chair confirmed that she would meet with the Head of Audit and Risk to create a 
work programme to include time scales and tracking of actions form the AGS and the 
PIR. The Committee will need to look at how to manage that going forward.  
 
37  Customer Experience/Complaints and Ombudsman Annual Assurance 

2020 
 

In a change to the order of the published agenda the Committee agreed to take item 
12, Customer Experience / Complaints and Ombudsman Annual Assurance 2020 as 
the next item.  
 
Dominic Omelia, Customer Experience Manager introduced the report on complaints 
received by the Authority. He informed the Committee that of the 5,116 complaints 
received over the last year the vast majority were dealt with by the Authority. Of those 
referred to the Local Government Ombudsman, 19 in total, 12 were upheld. This is 
0.02% of the total number of complaints received. During discussion, the following 
points were highlighted: 
 

(a) Most complaints are based around waste, this does not include fly tipping. 
Single missed bin collections are not included in this number either, however 
repeated missed bin collections are. Work is ongoing to establish if there are 
problem streets (difficult to access due to parking issues) or issues around 
recycling contamination that will result in refusal to collect the bins. Where this 
is the case there is a focus on educating the public to ensure that waste is put 
into the correct bins; 
 

(b) Protected characteristic information, such as ethnicity or disability, is not 
routinely recorded by the complaints system for individual complainants. 
Where a complaint raises an issue or question around equality, an Equality 
Impact Assessment is completed. 
 

Resolved to note the contents of the report 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:03am to allow Councillor David Mellen to join the 
meeting to present the subsequent item, and reconvened at 11.12am. 
 
38  Public Interest Report 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the committee agreed to take item 
9, Public Interest Report as the next item.  
 
Councillor David Mellen, Leader of the Council presented the report detailing the 
findings of the External Auditor’s report in the Public Interest and the Action Plan 
created by Nottingham City Council to address the recommendations made. He gave 
a presentation outlining the findings, recommendations and action plan:  
 

(a) The role of the Audit Committee in monitoring of the response of this report 
and the action plan that has been developed in response will be an important 
one;  
 

Page 8



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

7 

(b) The Report in the Public Interest focused on the governance of Robin Hood 
Energy and highlighted the following points:  

 Governance arrangements were not strong enough and there were 
inadequacies in holding the company to account. 

 A lack of clarity on roles in governance. 

 An insufficient understanding of risk, and financial positon of the 
company and expertise to recognise it on the Board. 

 An inappropriate balance between holding the company to account and 
allowing it freedom to operate commercially.  

 The Council needs to learn from this experience, not just in relation to 
Robin Hood Energy, but the overall governance of companies and the 
Council its self needs to be renewed.  

 Challenge and check should not be viewed as a negative, but should be 
welcomed as healthy and enabling a greater awareness and 
understanding of risk.  
 

(c) There are 13 recommendations made within the report, these are summarised 
below: 

 Review the position of Councillors as Board members, and ensure a full 
understanding of the role of and legal requirements for Board members. 

 Urgently determine the future of RHE, taking into account the current 
financial position of the Council.   

 Ensure that the Board (both councillors and non Councillor members) 
have the experience and knowledge to challenge the management, 
particularly when operating in a specialised sector. 

 Ensure Councillors are provided with the sufficient and appropriate 
training that is updated regularly. 

 Ensure good definition of roles within the governance structure and 
ensure that people understand their roles.  

 Scope for conflict of interest is minimised and that there is a clear divide 
between people in roles of Board members and those who have the 
responsibility for holding them to account.  

 Risks from companies are included in the overall risk management 
process for the Council. 

 Consider the appropriateness of the definition of the shareholder role to 
ensure the Council’s financial interests are protected. 

 The Companies Governance Sub Committee (CGSC) continues to 
meet with companies and that financial information is provided and 
understood by members and others involved with holding companies to 
account. If this information is not provided that robust action, with 
oversight of the s151 officer is taken.  

 Responsibilities for scrutiny and risk are given sufficient prominence, 
including giving Audit Committee explicit responsibility for scrutiny of 
governance and risk management.  

 Learn lessons from RHE and undertake a further review of company 
governance arrangements in particular, to ensure that risks are 
appropriately flagged and managed and implementation of the more 
robust monitoring agreed by CGSC.  
 

(d) The Report in the Public Interest was discussed at the Council meeting on 27th 
August 2020. An Action Plan was agreed at this meeting and the Council’s 
response to the report was published;  

Page 9



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

8 

 
(e) The Leader of the Council has met with the Chairs and chief officers of all of 

the Council’s companies. Part of the specialist training required for board 
members can only be done by those companies and so early engagement has 
been important to start to set this in motion; 
 

(f) The Leader has met with the Chairs of both Audit Committee and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to discuss the roles these Committees will have in the 
implementation of the action plan; 
 

(g) The action plan covers the thirteen recommendations made by the report and 
includes three additional actions added by the Council: 

 Conclude the strategic Review of RHE and produce a report on the 
lessons learned.  

 Commit to learn from best practice from partners, and other successful 
council owned companies and national bodies. 

 Review of the use of Councillors on boards. 

 Ensure training is provided so that board members have sufficient 
knowledge and experience to challenge management. 

 Seek external advice on best practice models of Council ownership of 
companies. There will be an oversight Committee/Board that will 
oversee the Governance improvements with external members. 

 Ensure risks related to companies are considered within the Council’s 
risk management process. 

 Review current training for board members ensure all board members, 
councillor or non-councillor, have refresher basic training, specialist 
training where necessary and regular refresher training as regulations 
change. 

 Review the scheme of delegation in place within the Council to ensure 
effective governance. 

 Review the roles of Executive Board, CGSC, Overview and Scrutiny 
and Audit Committees to ensure clarity and accountability, the Chairs 
will be fully involved in the review. 

 Review the appointment process of Councillors onto company boards 

 Refine the high level Risk Register to include company risks and review 
regularity of reporting to Audit Committee, Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Executive Board. 

 Review the wider governance arrangements within the Council taking 
advice from the LGA and other external bodies. 

 Refresh the Medium Term financial strategy.  
 

Committee members asked a number of questions and the following additional 
information was highlighted during discussion: 
 

(h) Challenge needs to be seen as healthy, this will require a cultural change. 
There have been elements of how business is completed that can discourage 
that check and challenge.  
 

(i) It is necessary for Councillors to recognise the transition from political 
candidate to a Councillor serving the City. There is a balance to be struck 
between being a political person and being responsible for the council. More 
training on this point will be necessary;  

Page 10



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

9 

 
(j) The Leader of the Council has met with the leaders of the two opposition 

parties and has taken on suggestions around strengthening the action plan;  
 
(k) Within the report and action plan there is a lot of emphasis on Councillor 

culture, there needs to be equal emphasis on Officer culture too. Officer 
culture did at times appear to block action which is not highlighted within the 
report;  
 

(l) It is essential that Officers are able to perform their statutory roles. Both the 
s151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer fulfilled their statutory powers under 
very difficult circumstances. Moving forward work will need to focus on 
ensuring that all individuals, Councillor and Officers carry out their duties 
within these company arrangements;  
 

(m)If external members are appointed to a Board to provide specialist knowledge 
within a field, they need to be able to challenge the management without 
concerns about losing their position if they raise difficult issues. External 
members also need to be able to adjust to Local Government culture and 
finance, they will also require training. Both independent members and 
Councillor members of a board need to have a remit to challenge and actively 
participate in the business of the Board and the governance of the company; 
 

(n) Share holder meetings are essential, the CGSC needs to ensure that the 
meetings are held and are properly conducted with standard reporting and 
formal minutes. The issue of Share holder representatives need to be resolved 
to allow officers enough time to fulfil their duties as Shareholder 
Representative; 
 

(o) There is a lot of work to do and actions have been identified with deadlines, 
some of which are very short. Capacity has to be found to progress the 
actions. There is a need for pace to the response the Council provides to 
ensure that other companies are run appropriately and Councillors are 
supported in their roles; 
 

(p) Value for money is key, consideration will be given to the suggestion that a 
Value for Money statement should be required when contracts are awarded to 
Council owned companies without a tender process first taking place;  
 

(q) Chairs of companies do not need to have specific legal or accountancy 
qualifications. Chairs across the council owned companies have various 
strength, regardless of their formal qualifications. Technical and sectoral 
experience is also important as is the ability of the Chair to develop a positive 
culture of challenge within the Board;  
 

(r) The strategic review of Robin Hood Energy is not yet completed. The 
recommendation in the report to determine the future of the company has 
been completed. The customers will be sold to other companies and this 
process is underway. There is ongoing consultation with the staff group, and 
there are legal and other arrangements to be completed, which should be 
completed by the end of the year or soon after that. There are regular update 
reports to the Robin Hood Energy Steering group; 
 

Page 11



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

10 

(s) The use of Gateway and Phase reviews on Capital projects can be looked at 
and ensure that their use is in place and consider whether Audit Committee 
should receive a schedule of reviews. The programmes that are being taken 
forward are being regularly monitored. Again culture and integrity of the review 
structure is important to ensure that outcome is not dictated prior to the review 
happening;  
 

(t) Independent members of governing bodies and company boards need to add 
value, not just through their experience. There were periods of time when 
there were no experts on the RHE board and since the employment of an 
industry expert the Board has had more confidence to navigate the difficult 
phase in a better ways than without that expertise;  
 

(u) The culture within an organisation is driven by leadership. Leadership needs to 
drive the change in the culture going forward and councillors and officers need 
to consider how change can best be driven.  
 

The Chair thanked Councillor Mellen for his attendance and the Committee noted the 
presentation and points made in the discussion that followed it.  
 
39  Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

 
In a change to the order of the published agenda the committee agreed to take item 
7, Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 as the next item. 
 
Shail Shah, Head of Audit and Risk introduced the Draft Annual Governance 
Statement for 2019/20 to the Committee. He advised them that the draft version had 
been published alongside the Draft Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 towards the 
end of August 2020. The following information was highlighted: 
 

(a) The draft document will very likely require changes as more information is 
received and will come back to this Committee in its final form along with the 
final Statement of Accounts in due course. The draft Statement is still subject 
to External Audit as are the draft Accounts;  
 

(b) Some alterations to the report and the structure have been made taking into 
account comments previously made by this Committee, timeline columns have 
been added to the action plan, for example;  
 

(c) The report outlines the significant issues faced by the Council, these include 
the Report in the Public Interest, financial implications of the Covid 19 
pandemic, RHE, the Capital programme, financial resilience, OFSTED 
inspection, protecting people from Covid, energy and waste infrastructure and 
the Broadmarsh project;   
 

(d) Comments or suggestions made by the Committee at this time can be 
incorporated into the final Annual Governance Statement. Officers have 
provided updated information that has fed into this Statement too;  

 
Committee members asked a number of questions and the following information was 
highlighted as a result of discussion:  
 

Page 12



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

11 

(e) The action plan indicates end dates of March 2022 for the Report in the Public 
Interest. Progress reports may be beneficial on the individual elements of the 
action plan. This Committee will be tracking the progress of implementation of 
the Action plans. It will become a standing item at Audit Committee and the 
Programme Manager will report at each meeting in order to assure that 
Committee that the outcomes are not only progressing in line with the 
recommendations but that actions are leading to the right outcomes;  
 

(f) Clear acknowledgement of ambition to have phase reviews on the Capital 
Programme element is needed. Strong points were made in the previous item 
around the culture of the phase reviews and the action plan should be more 
specific. This can further be considered by one of the proposed working 
groups;  
 

(g) Some of the items on the action plan are referred to as “continuing to”, or with  
“ongoing” timelines, these are either actions that are taking place as normal 
business, or should be updated on the action plan with additional information. 
The timelines and actions within the plan are not only for this Committee to act 
on but also for other Council committees and Council structures. It is 
necessary for this Committee to receive the updates at appropriate times;  
 

(h) A statement is needed clarifying what is meant by the completion of the 
strategic review into Robin Hood Energy as opposed to the completion of the 
company business and whether the October 2020 end date is appropriate. 
Clarification will be sought and the final statement updated;  
 

(i) It is important to keep on top of all of the risks facing the City Council. One of 
these is the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and how it will specifically impact 
Nottingham City Council’s budget. One area of concern is Public Transport, 
which has been kept open but used far less. There are financial implications to 
this and more information is needed in the final statement on this area. 
Nottingham City Council has been working with both the Tram and the Bus 
companies. The government has provided assistance throughout the crisis, 
however it is unclear when this support will come to an end and how the future 
“new normal” will look for these companies. The Nottingham Ice Centre and 
Royal Centre were also mentioned as being significantly affected. Work to 
mitigate and understand these risks is underway; 
 

(j) The Children’s Improvement programme and the financial implications of  
improving Children’s Services is also a risk. Extensive modelling work is being 
undertaken to understand the impact of external factors and of Covid. 
Although the children in care numbers have increased slightly, the unit cost of 
provision has increased substantially and a programme of work has 
commenced to mitigate that additional financial strain;  
 

(k) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are looking at the impact of Covid 19 
on BAME communities, and disabled colleagues and citizens and those with 
protected characteristic in light of the Local Outbreak Control Plan; 
 

(l) There were suggestions from the Committee on presentation of risk 
information that can be taken away and used to update the statement. All 
action points in the action plan should reference the outlined major risks;  
 

Page 13



Audit Committee - 25.09.20 

12 

The Chair and the Head of Audit and Risk will meet outside the Committee to ensure 
that there is an appropriate reporting pathway in place to pull together updates from 
the Governance Statement Action Plan, Work Programme and the Public Interest 
Report Action plan and that the information is fed back to the Committee. 
 
Councillor Michael Edwards proposed an additional recommendation around the 
need for a coversheet detailing observations made and whether the AGS had been 
updates as a result of that observation. This proposal was seconded by Councillor 
Andrew Rule and was carried by the committee. 
 
Resolved to: 

(1) Require a coversheet for the next edition of the Annual Governance 
Statement presented to the Audit Committee that acknowledges every 
observation and suggestion made at the September Audit Committee 
and reports whether the Annual Governance Statement has been 
changed as a result of each observation; and  
 

(2) Note the Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 set out in 
Appendix 1 of the published report.   

 
40  Exclusion of the Public 

 
The Committee decided to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining agenda items in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the basis that, having regard to all the circumstances, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information, as defined in Paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Act. 
 
41  Exempt Minutes 

 
With the alteration referred to in minute 31 changing Nottingham Pensions Board to 
Nottinghamshire Pensions Committee exempt minutes of the meeting held on 31 July 
2020 were confirmed as true record and were signed by the Chair  
 
42  East Midlands Shared Services Annual Report 2019/20 

 
The Committee discussed the content of the exempt report as detailed in the exempt 
minutes and noted its content.  
 

Page 14



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

Audit Committee Work Programme & Action Log 
 

Proposed Work Programme 

2020   

Nov   
Report in the Public Interest update   
External Audit update    
Companies risk registers overview 
MHCLG Non-Statutory Review update 
Discussion Paper on subgroups including draft TOR 

Nov – training session (separate meeting) 

  

- Link Treasury Management Scrutiny    
Dec – training session (separate meeting) 

- Financial Accounts Training tbc 
- Risk training 

  

2021   
Jan 

Report in the Public Interest update 
MHCLG Non-Statutory Review Report 
External Audit Reports 
Statement of Accounts 2019-20 
Final AGS 2019-20 
Treasury Management Half Year 
Non-Executive Amendments to the Constitution 
Audit Committee Terms of Reference & Work Programme 

Jan – training session (separate meeting) 
- Audit Committee Training tbc 

  

Feb   
Report in the Public Interest update   
AGS actions update & 2020-21 process   
   

2021   

Feb (continued)   
External Audit plan 
Treasury Management & Capital Strategy 

  

Brexit Update   
Covid-19 & Emergency Plan Review   
Internal Audit Update   
Information Governance & Information Security Annual Assurance   

Mar   
Report in the Public Interest update   
Non-Executive Amendments to the Constitution   
Council Plan & Corporate Performance Assurance   
Partnership Governance Framework & Annual Health Checks   
Review of Accounting Policies 2020/21   
Health & Safety Annual Assurance   

Apr / May   
Report in the Public Interest update   
Risk Management & Corporate Risk Register Update   
Audit Committee Terms of Reference & Work Programme   
Equality & HR Assurance   

Jun   
Accounts Update & Draft Statement of Accounts 2020-21 
Interim AGS 2020-21 

  

Treasury Management Annual Report   
Governance and Accountability of 3rd Party Arrangements   

Report in the Public Interest update   
EMSS Annual Report   
   

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

   
   
2021   

Jul   
Audit Committee Annual Report   
Report in the Public Interest update   
IA Annual Report & Opinion including   
Counter Fraud Strategy & Whistleblowing Policy   

Sep   
External Audit Report    
Statement of Accounts   
Final AGS 2020-21   
Report in the Public Interest update 
Customer Experience/Complaints  
& Ombudsman Annual Assurance 

  

   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 
   
   
   
   

   
   

P
age 16



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

Action Log 
 

Date of meeting Issue Action taken  Target Date RAG Rating 

25 Sep 20 Sub groups Report to November meeting November G 

 PIR Update to every meeting Each meeting G 

 Training Risk training dates circulated. December G 

Accounts training dates tbc January A 

General Audit Committee training dates tbc (PIR action) February A 

Treasury management training 27 Nov November G 

 AGS  To be considered as part of finalisation process and final 
report expected Jan 2021 

January A 

 Whistleblowing Obligation to report is in Employee Code of Conduct Complete G 

     

     
 

  

    
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   

   

P
age 17



Key  - Italicised items for noting, remainder for discussion 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 18



Audit Committee – 27 November 2020 
 

Title of paper: Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government Rapid 
Non Statutory Review of Nottingham City Council 

Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Colin Monckton, Director of Policy & 
Strategy 
Melbourne Barrett, Chief Executive 

Wards affected: All 
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Colin Monckton, Director of Policy & Strategy 
Gill Cooke, Executive Officer to the Chief Executive 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Theresa Channell, Head of Strategic Finance 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 To be aware of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) rapid 
non-statutory focused review and note the activity connected with it and the timeframes and 
potential outcomes of the review. 

 

2 To receive a further update after the outcome of the review has been provided 

 

 
1 Reasons for recommendations 
 
1.1 To ensure that members of Audit committee are fully sighted on the terms of reference 

of the Review, its process and methodology and the timeline for the submission of the 
Review to the Secretary of State. 

 
2 Background 
 
2.1 On 11th August 2020 Grant Thornton published a Report in the Public Interest in 

regard to Nottingham City Council, and in particular in response to issues surrounding, 
but not limited to, Robin Hood Energy. 

 
2.2 The Council has accepted the recommendations of the PIR in full, and has provided a 

public response which includes a comprehensive action plan. This was approved at an 
extra-ordinary Full Council meeting on the 27th August 2020. 

 
2.3 On 2nd November, Robert Jenrick; Secretary of State for MHCLG, announced a rapid 

non-statutory review of Nottingham City Council (NCC). The purpose of the review is 
to look into the governance and risk management issues within the Council following a 
range of matters raised in, but not limited to, the Report in the Public Interest (PIR). 

 
2.4 The decision to hold the review by the Secretary of State MHCLG, was taken within 

the context of ongoing dialogue that was underway between the Chief Executive of the 
Council and MHCLG in regard to our approach to responding to the PIR and financial 
sustainability. The MHCLG review therefore has the full cooperation of the Council’s 
Officers and Members, the aim being to identify the issues NCC is facing and make 
recommendations for action that should be taken. 

 
2.5 The “rapid non-statutory focused review” is a relatively new concept and is intended to 

be undertaken earlier than a formal statutory review would take place and in doing so 
allows for a greater opportunity to act earlier and remedy issues in order to prevent 
more formal intervention from Government; however it does not rule out a more 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



formal, statutory intervention from the government in the future – a decision on which 
will be informed by this work. 

 
2.6 Three independent reviewers have been appointed by the Secretary of State to carry 

out the review:- 
 

 The lead reviewer is Max Caller CBE. Max Caller previously led the best value 
inspection into Northamptonshire County Council and was also the government 
commissioner in London Borough Tower Hamlets charged with improving the 
council’s governance and culture.  

 He has served as Chief Executive of the London Borough of Barnet and the 
London Borough of Hackney. 

 Financial reviewer Julie Parker is a former Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer), at both the London Borough of Barking & Dagenham, and the London 
Borough of Haringey Council, and supported Max Caller CBE on the financial 
aspects of the best value inspection in Northamptonshire County Council. 

 Commercial reviewer Phil Brookes is a Crown Representative at the Cabinet 
Office and has worked with a range of strategic suppliers to government in 
facilities and construction services. Phil previously worked in a number of roles 
across infrastructure investment, most recently for Balfour Beatty. 

 
The findings of the review will be reported directly to the Local Government Secretary 
and published on the GOV.UK website once complete. 
 
Terms of Reference 

 
2.7 Terms Of Reference for the review have been published at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-rapid-review-into-
nottingham-city-council and are summarised here as follows: 

 
a) Governance, e.g. sense of strategic vision and direction, adequate internal 

processes; key senior posts filled with appropriate permanent appointments; 
b) Culture and leadership, e.g. positive and open relationships between 

councillors/officers and officer/officer; openness to challenge;  
c) Financial stability, e.g. ability to stick to budget plans; clear plans for closing 

identified budget gaps;  
d) Services, e.g. reports from inspectorates/regulators/ombudsman;   
e) Capacity and/or capability to improve, e.g. acknowledging problems 

and engaging with sector support; evidence that attempts at improvement 
(possibly with sector support), have been effective. 

 
MHCLG also identified specific questions that they would like the reviewers to ask, 
exploring the Council’s financial sustainability and their management of commercial 
risk: 
 

 What level of confidence can the Department have in the Council’s assessment 
of its financial position, particularly its estimate of their budget gap, for 2020/21 
and 2021/22?  

 What level of confidence can the Department have on the Council’s plan to 
mitigate pressures; including the delivery of necessary savings, the existing 
resources that can be deployed, and their ability to afford borrowing? 

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-rapid-review-into-nottingham-city-council
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-rapid-review-into-nottingham-city-council


 What is your view of the Council’s assessment of future financial risks and 
adequacy of their plan (or ability to plan), to manage those risks? 

 What is your view of the Council’s approach to mitigating their budget gap 
under different scenarios for how much financial support is provided? 

 What level of confidence can the Department have on the Council’s 
assessment of wholly owned companies, including the viability of companies to 
continue without any additional Council funding or loans?  

 How robust are any forward-looking commercial strategies/plans and their 
longer term approach to borrowing and investment?  

 Does the Council’s oversight and management of commercial and investment 
risk feel adequate or fit for purpose? 

 
2.8 Timeframe and Methodology 
 

The Review Team formally began on 2 November and is expected to provide an 
outcome report during early December. 

 
The review team have undertaken a focused look at public and non-publically 
available information about the Council – to do this the review team made a number of 
requests for information related primarily to the Council’s finances and its relationship 
with Companies, all of which has been provided to the review team.  

 
The second stage of the review process is focused on interviews during the second 
week of November with Portfolio Holders, chairs of Audit and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Corporate Directors and Directors. 

 
They also interviewed leaders of opposition groups and the MDs and Finance 
Directors of all the Council’s key companies. 

 
The information and outcomes of the interviews will be used to form a report which will 
be shared with NCC for comment, and then delivered directly to the Secretary of 
State.  
 
It is intended this report is available not later than at the start of December. 

 
2.9 Potential Outcomes 
 

Max Caller formally met with the political leadership of the Council and the Chief 
Executive to launch the review. During this launch meeting he made it clear that he 
and the Team have been brought in to provide recommendations to the Secretary of 
State.  
 
He outlined that a range of different outcomes may arise from the review, ranging from 
an agreed improvement plan to a requirement for a Best Value Inspection (BVI) to be 
carried out.  

 
3 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 

confidential information 
 
3.1 None. 
 
4 Published documents referred to in compiling this report  

Page 21



 
4.1 MHCLG Letter to Lead Reviewer Max Caller - 2 November published on the MHCLG 

Website.  
 
4.2 Report of external auditor; ‘Report in the Public Interest concerning the Council’s 

governance arrangements for Robin Hood Energy Ltd’.  
 
4.3  Extraordinary City Council 27 August 2020: Report in the Public Interest on 

Nottingham City Council's governance arrangements for Robin Hood Energy and 
Action Plan in response 

 
4.4 MHCLG Statutory intervention and inspection - A guide for local authorities:  
 
4.5 Interim Budget Report: 22 September 2020 Executive Board – Interim Budget 

2020/21, Medium Term Financial Outlook and Draft Strategy 2021/22 to 2023/24  
 
 

Page 22



Audit Committee – 27 November 2020 
 

 

Title of paper: Report in the Public Interest – Action Plan Update  
Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Malcolm Townroe, Director of Legal 
and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 

Wards affected: All 
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Daniel Ayrton, Business Development Manager 
Daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Beth Brown, Head of Legal and Governance 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 To note the work undertaken to date and progress made towards implementation of 
the Action Plan produced in response to the Report in the Public Interest issued by the 
external auditor in respect of the governance arrangements for Robin Hood Energy.. 

 
1 Reasons for recommendations 
 
1.1 The Action Plan approved by Full Council on 27 August 2020 detailed 62 separate 

actions and sub-actions that would be taken by Nottingham City Council, in response 
to the report of the external auditor. Of these, over half (37) are scheduled for 
completion by the end of November 2020. Given the seriousness of the auditor’s 
findings, and the urgency with which the Council wishes to act, it is important that the 
Audit Committee is provided with adequate assurance of progress and implementation 
of the Action Plan within the expected time frame. 

 
2 Background 

2.1 Since the Action Plan was approved by Council, a Programme Delivery Board has 
been established to implement the actions within the plan and direct Council 
resources accordingly. 

2.2 The Programme Delivery Board has responsibility for ensuring the aims and objectives 
of the Action Plan and the broader governance improvement objectives of the 
organisation are delivered; for taking decisions relating to how the actions are 
delivered and for ensuring the programme is adequately resourced. 

2.3 Separate proposals were also agreed by Full Council at its November meeting to 
formally constitute a Governance Improvement Board the broad purpose of which is to 
provide clear and transparent oversight and accountability for the delivery of the 
Action Plan and the Council’s broader vision for excellence in all aspects of 
governance and public sector stewardship. 

2.4 The Improvement Board will also provide for robust and constructive challenge 
drawing from a range of internal and external perspectives and expertise. 

2.5 The action plan has been split into five stages. These are: 

 

Stage Dates 

Stage 1: Response to Audit Report 10/08/2020 – 28/08/2020 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Stage 2: Programme Planning & Resourcing 31/08/2020 – 18/09/2020 

Stage 3: Research & Review 21/09/2020 – 31/12/2020 

Stage 4: Proposals & Approvals 04/01/2021 – 02/07/2021 

Stage 5: Adoption & Embedding 05/07/2021 – 04/10/2021  

 

2.6 The individual actions have been broken down and allocated to eight work streams 
with lead officers appointed by the Delivery Board. These cover; risk, legal, finance, 
constitutional, training and recruitment, Councillor engagement, employee 
engagement and communications. 

2.7 Whilst the initial focus of the Programme Delivery Board has been to ensure effective 
programme management arrangements are in place, progress has also been made 
towards completion of the actions in the Action Plan. 

2.8 Eleven actions due for completion have been formally signed-off by the Delivery Board 
as complete. Specifically these are: 

 

Action Ref Rec Ref Action Deadline 

AR01.2 AR1 

The Strategic Review will report to the Robin Hood 
Energy Board and will be concluded shortly.  

05/10/2020 

AR01.3 AR1 

Any consequences of the review for the Council’s 
2020/21 budget and its medium term financial 
outlook and plan will be reported to full Council as 
part of the October 5th interim budget report. 

05/10/2020 

AR02.3 AR2 

External guidance on best practice in regard to 
Councillor appointments on local authority 
companies will be sought 

30/09/2020 

AR02.4 AR2 

External guidance on defining the role and legal 
requirements for local authority company directors 
and guidance on skill set required will be sought. 

30/09/2020 

AR03.6 AR3 

The relevant NCC officials will continue to be 
available to offer advice to members on all aspects 
of their role on Council company boards. 

With immediate effect 

AR06.5 AR6 

The access to formal advice from the Council’s legal 
and democratic service for all councillors appointed 
to council company boards on conflicts of interest or 
any other matter will continue to be made available.  

With immediate effect 

AR08.4 AR8 

A dedicated senior finance post provides additional 
capacity and capability to managing the financial 
reporting requirements on the Council’s group of 
companies.  

With immediate effect 

AR08.7 AR8 

The dedicated senior finance role will also be 
reviewed in the light of The Report in the Public 
Interest to ensure it is fulfilling the corporate function 
needed and that departments and Council 
companies understand their relationship and new 
ways of working on this matter.  

With immediate effect 

Page 24



AR13.1 AR13 

The construction of a refreshed Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) is underway and due to 
be reported to Full Council in October 2020. 

05/10/2020 

AR13.2 AR13 

This will set out at a high level how the Council will 
balance its budget over the medium term and 
incorporates the financial implications for Council 
own companies for the overall Council budget.   

05/10/2020 

OR01.5 OR1 

Any proposed additional council companies should 
be established using this new framework. 

With immediate effect 

 

2.9 A best practice library has been created pulling together 23 separate documents 
produced by a range of external bodies including; 

• The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) 

• Lawyers in Local Government (LLG) 

• The National Audit Office (NAO) 

• National Commission on the future of governance in the public sector 

• Norse Group 

• Bristol City Council 

• York City Council 

• South Holland District Council 

• Grant Thornton 

2.10 These documents cover a range of issues relating to Corporate Governance, Local 
Authority and Public Sector Governance and specific guidance relating to the 
governance of Local Authority controlled companies. This includes guidance on the 
role and requirements of executive and non-executive directors in general, the 
practice and key considerations of appointing Councillors as directors and best 
practice in managing potential conflicts of interest. 

2.11 A review of best practice has also been completed and signed off by the Delivery 
Board on November 4th 2020.  This represents completion of a further six actions. 
These are: 

 

Action Ref Rec Ref Action Deadline 

AR02.1 AR2 An audit and review of NCC’s approach to councillor 
membership of each subsidiary company board and 
any other similar organisations NCC Councillors are 
appointed to, will be undertaken. This review will fully 
involve the chief executives/chief officers of the 
Council’s companies, as well as the Chairs and 
members of the Company Boards. 

31/10/2020 

Page 25



AR02.2 AR2 As part of this review, the membership balance of the 
boards will be considered in aggregate in regard to 
best practice for achieving diversity, skill set, sectoral 
knowledge and NCC representation.  

31/10/2020 

AR03.1 AR3 The review of NCC councillor directors of boards in R2 
will also establish the sectoral knowledge required to 
effectively hold the management of the different 
companies to account and assess the knowledge and 
skill set of the existing membership of the boards in 
relation to that sector or business area. This review will 
fully involve the chief executives or chief officers of the 
Council’s companies, as well as the Chairs and 
members of Company Boards. 

31/10/2020 

AR04.1 AR4 A review of the current training package offered to 
Councillors as directors on company boards and other 
similar organisations will be undertaken. 

30/10/2020 

AR04.2 AR4 External best practice and advice will be sought from 
both the Local Government Association and bodies in 
the private sector who advise on company governance 
and training for directors.  

30/10/2020 

AR11.5 AR11 Whilst this review is underway the current shareholder 
representatives will be reviewed, any existing gaps 
filled and an interim new role definition be drawn up 
and training provided.  

31/10/2020 

 

 

2.13 The Programme Delivery Board, whilst recognising the ongoing challenge of keeping 
pace with what is an ambitious schedule, report no current slippage to the plan 
approved by Full Council and presented to the external auditor. 

 
3 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 

confidential information 
 
3.1 None 
 
4 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
4.1 City Council – 9 November 2020 Report of the Lord Mayor - Response to the Report 

in the Public Interest. 

Page 26



Audit Committee – 27th November 2020 
 

 

Title of paper: Companies Risk Management Review  

 
Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Laura Pattman – Strategic Director 
of Finance 

Wards affected: All 
 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Bipon Bhakri – Head of Finance – Commercial & Projects 
Bipon.bhakri@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Council Group Companies Chief Finance Officers, Council 
Principal Risk Specialist/ Council Strategic Finance Team 

Exempt Information:  

An appendix to the report is exempt from publication under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 because it contains information that if released in the public 
domain, could prejudice contract negotiations that could potentially lead to value for money 
issues in the future and, having regard to all the circumstances, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
It is not in the public interest to disclose this information exempt due to the sensitive nature 
of the companies’ financial information with regards to their market competitors having 
access to this information, and may impact on future trading. 
   

Recommendation(s): 

1 To note the use of the Companies Financial Governance Framework to support its risk 
management of the group of companies. 
 

2 To note the Group Risk Register and its connection to the City Council Finance Risk 
Register 
 

3 To note the External Audit Findings reports for the companies. 
 

 
1 Reasons for recommendations 
 
1.1 To provide the audit committee with high level financial and operational performance 

and risk information with regard to those companies which are part of the ‘Group’ for the 
City Council. This information is presented in Appendix A. 
 

1.2 To provide the Audit committee with specific financial and risk information and 
mitigating actions being undertaken to manage the risks identified, as presented in 
exempt Appendix B.  
 

1.3 This will support the development of the committee in relation to better understanding 
the risk management of the ‘Group companies’. 

 
2 Background 
 
2.1 Information has been taken from the companies risk registers. 
 
2.2 The Companies Governance Sub-Committee (CGSC) are regularly provided with financial 

and risk information and it is this committee which directs actions arising from the 
information received. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



 
2.3 The Companies Audit Findings Reports are specific to the company and findings reflect the 

specific nature of the company and in the sector they operate. The information is private and 
confidential to the company. 

 
2.4 The Companies financial impact and risks are reflected in the Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) Companies section, so the impact on the council is understood. 
 
2.5 The increasing requirements for financial support to underpin going concern status is being 

managed by the council in terms of the evidence requirements before requests are 
considered, so the companies are able to build their case in appropriate time and manner. 

 
3 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 

confidential information 
 
3.1 None 
 
4 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
4.1 Nottingham City Council (NCC) MTFS is published along with the council’s budget report 
 

Page 28



NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
GROUP COMPANIES GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK UPDATE

AUDIT COMMITTEE NOVEMBER 2020

P
age 29



Financial Management

ThirdFirst Second

Companies Governance Executive Sub Committee

Risk ManagementBusiness Management

• Monthly Financial Reporting
• Medium Term Financial Strategy
• Annual Financial Management Refresher 

Training (TBD)

• Annual Review of appropriateness of 
financial scrutiny arrangements (TBD)

• Companies Audit Findings Report
• Quarterly Audit Actions Progress 

Updates (TBD)

• Monthly Companies Risk Register 
reports

• Implementation of Group Risk Plan & 
Appetite (TBD)

• Risk Mgmt Advice & Training (TBD)

• Group Business Plan Objectives 
Performance (TBD)

• Quarterly Shareholder Reps Reports 
(TBD)

• Monthly Companies Presentations

Companies Financial Governance Framework 

P
age 30



Companies 
Returns

• Companies Review Risks/Board Sign off
• Bi Weekly/Monthly 1-1 HoF Review with Companies 

Internal Review of 
Companies Risks

• NCC Internal Meeting with NCC Risk Officer to review companies risk 
• Check and Challenge for relevance to NCC  financial risks and inclusion into wider NCC 

Finance Risk Register

S151 Sign off –
Weekly CLT 
Reporting

• Review with S151 Officer at Finance Team Level to review all finance related risks (council 
and companies) and further escalations

• S151 Officer sign off and inclusion into CLT agenda

CGSC Monthly 
Review

• Companies Group Risks Summary presented to CGSC as part of monthly finances review
• HoF to action any recommendations/actions arising from CGSC

Companies Risks Review Process

P
age 31



2019-20 Nottingham City Council Group Auditors

Company Auditor 

Enviro-Energy RSM 
Nottingham Ice Centre & 

Arena 
Smith Cooper 

Robin Hood Energy Macintyre Hudson 
Nottingham City Transport BDO 

Futures Smith Cooper 
Blueprint PWC 

Nottingham Revenue & 
Benefits 

Smith Cooper 

Nottingham City Homes RSM 

Thomas Bow Mabe Allen 
 

P
age 32



Companies External Annual Audits/Year End Sign off

• The Auditors usually present the Audit Findings Report as part of the Annual Year End Accounts sign off 
process to the Company’s Board/Audit Committee 

• The Intention of this report is to provide an overview of the companies auditors reports and the issues 
identified during their audits

• The Audit Findings Reports provide enhanced focus areas as part of the work-plan schedule for the 
CGSC. This supports the strengthening of companies governance arrangements objectives 

• The Audit Findings Reports are usually not made public unless the client is a public sector organisation 
such as Local Authorities due to requirements relating to the Value for Money proposition

P
age 33



Key Themes

• Covid 19 Impact – Material Uncertainty on Business Environment

• Going Concern

• Internal Control Framework

• Management Override

Companies External Audits 2019-20

P
age 34



Financial Management

ThirdFirst Second

Companies Governance Executive Sub Committee

Risk ManagementBusiness Management

• Monthly Financial Reporting
• Medium Term Financial Strategy
• Annual Financial Management Refresher 

Training (TBD)

• Annual Review of appropriateness of 
financial scrutiny arrangements (TBD)

• Companies Audit Findings Report
• Quarterly Audit Actions Progress 

Updates (TBD)

• Monthly Companies Risk Register 
reports

• Implementation of Group Risk Plan & 
Appetite (TBD)

• Risk Mgmt Advice & Training (TBD)

• Group Business Plan Objectives 
Performance (TBD)

• Quarterly Shareholder Reps Reports 
(TBD)

• Monthly Companies Presentations

Feedforward/Feedback Loop to Companies Performance & Risks

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee – 27 November 2020 
 

Title of paper: Audit Committee Working Groups 
 

 
Director(s)/ 
Corporate Director(s): 

Laura Pattman 
Strategic Director of Finance 

Wards affected: 
All 

Report author(s) and 
contact details: 

Shail Shah 
Head of Audit & Risk 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

 

 

Recommendation(s): 

1 To determine membership and frequency of the working groups 
 

2 To comment on and approve the draft terms of reference for the working groups as set 
out in appendices 

 
1 Reasons for recommendations 
 
1.1 The Audit Committee at its meeting on 25th September 2020 decided to set up working 

groups to enable it to improve focus on the following areas. 

 Capital & Commercial 

 Fraud 

 Risk & Assurance 
 
1.2 These will be working groups of councillors not sub committees, and will not have 

delegated responsibilities or functions from the Audit Committee.  
 

1.3 The working groups will not complete any of the formal work of the Audit Committee. 
They will enable deeper understanding and focus of the areas concerned.  
 

1.4 Lead councillors will report back to the Committee on the activities of the working 
groups and the issues, assurance, learning, and improvement obtained. 
 

1.5 Continuation of the working groups will be subject to an annual evaluation and further 
approval by Audit Committee. 

 
2 Background 
 
2.1 Following the last committee meeting officers have met with the Chair and nominated 

councillors in order to determine how to implement the Committee’s decision. 
 

2.2 Draft terms of reference have been prepared which align with the Committee’s own 
terms of reference as follows. 

 Fraud – Appendix 1 

 Risk & Assurance – Appendix 2 
 

2.3 Capital & Commercial working group draft terms of reference are currently being 
developed and will be finalised following receipt of the MHCLG Non-Statutory Review 
report. 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



2.4 All terms of reference are draft for the first meeting of each group to review, refine and 
report back to Audit Committee for approval. 

 
3 Background papers other than published works or those disclosing exempt or 

confidential information 
 
3.1 None 
 
4 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 

 Audit Committee Papers June 2020 – Audit Committee Terms of Reference and Annual 
Work Programme 

Page 38



Appendix 1  
Nottingham City Council Audit Committee Fraud Working Group 
 
Draft Terms of Reference  
 
The meeting of the Audit Committee on 25th September 2020 resolved that a working group 
be set up to look at increasing income by reducing fraud. 
 
Purpose 
 
The working group is a working group of councillors not a sub committee, and will not have 
delegated responsibilities or functions from the Audit Committee. The purpose of the Audit 
Committee Fraud Working Group is to enable deeper understanding and focus by Audit 
Committee members on the collection of income due to the Council, specifically the 
arrangements for managing the risk of fraud, identification of fraud when it occurs plus 
obtaining assurances that the Council’s systems that generate income are robust and 
working efficiently. 
 
Objectives of the Working Group 
 
The Fraud Working Group will support the understanding and focus of councillors in fulfilling 
their responsibilities on the Audit Committee in respect of: 
  

 Considering reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation 
of agreed actions;  

 

 Reviewing the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the Council from fraud and 
corruption;  

 

 Monitoring the counter-fraud strategy, actions, resources, and recovery;  
 
 

Responsibilities 
 
The group will: 
1. Learn about and make suggestions towards a plan for proactive exercises with a view to 

identifying income due to the Council that is not being collected as a result of 
fraud/evasion, inefficiencies and system weaknesses. 

 
2. Receive progress reports on these exercises and on the  recovery of proceeds,  and 

discuss the outputs with the appropriate officer(s). 
 
3. Receive periodic reports on the reactive work undertaken by Internal Audit that responds 

to complaints or indications of fraud/evasion in respect of income due to the Council. 
 
4. Receive periodic reports on the planned work of internal audit in order to obtain 

assurances regarding the systems and processes in place within the Council to collect 
income. 

 
5. Discuss any serious concerns highlighted by Internal Audit, with process owners. 
 

Page 39



6. Provide periodic updates to the Audit Committee on the activities of the working group 
and the issues, assurance, learning, and improvement obtained including 
recommendations where appropriate. 

 
 
Membership 
 
The group will be led by Councillor xx and made up of xx others. This will be agreed by the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Resources 
 
The Corporate Counter Fraud Team, which current consists of 3.4 FTE, will provide support 
to the working group. Additional support will come from the Internal Audit team as necessary. 
To enable the completion of any agreed proactive exercises, data will be required from 
Council systems to allow the necessary analytical work to take place. The working group will 
be able to discuss concerns with and receive explanations and action reports from process 
owners. 
 
Reporting 
 
Activities, issues, assurance, learning, and improvement obtained by the Fraud Working 
Group will be reported to the Audit Committee by the working group lead Councillor after 
each meeting. 
 
Frequency 
 
The Working Group will meet four times per year. Initially, however, in order to establish the 
scope of the work, the group may wish to meet more frequently. 
 

 

Page 40



 

Appendix 2 
Nottingham City Council Audit Committee Risk & Assurance Working Group 
 
Draft Terms of Reference  
 
The meeting of the Audit Committee on 25th September 2020 resolved that a working group 
be set up to look at improving risk management. 
 
Purpose  
 
The working group is a working group of councillors not a sub committee, and will not have 
delegated responsibilities or functions from the Audit Committee. The purpose of the Audit 
Committee Risk & Assurance Working Group is to enable deeper understanding and focus 
by Audit Committee members on risk management including adopting a risk-focused 
approach to the work programme. In order to do so it must consider the council’s framework 
of assurance and how it links to corporate risk management. 
 
Objectives of the Working Group 
 
The Risk & Assurance Working Group will support the understanding and focus of councillors 
in fulfilling their responsibilities on the Audit Committee in respect of: 
  

 Providing independent assurance to those charged with governance of the adequacy 
of the risk management framework and the internal control environment. 

 Providing independent review of the Council’s governance, risk management and 
control frameworks. 

 Scrutinising the council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it 
affects the council’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment;  

 
And functions to  

 Consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities of the council 

 Monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the council 
 

Responsibilities 
 
1. To evaluate the council’s system for managing assurance and the extent to which it is 

linked to the statutory and strategic objectives of the council. 
 
2. To seek confirmation that the council has mapped its assurance framework, that  

a. Key controls are in place to manage risk including appropriate resource, 
business plans, processes, policies and procedures 

b. Management and reporting is in place including oversight groups and specialist 
roles. 

c. Independent assurance is in place when needed including by regulators, 
external review and accreditation, internal audits, and other external 
assurances 

d. Gaps and weaknesses in controls and assurances are identified, captured 
within the relevant risk register  

3. To seek confirmation that risk registers are appropriately managed 
a. Risks are understood and communicated in line with the risk management 

framework  

Page 41



 

b. Existing mitigations are identified and in place 
c. Residual risk is assessed in terms of likelihood and impact using the council’s 

risk assessment matrix 
d. Actions are in place to reduce the likelihood and or impact of the risk and these 

are monitored at an appropriate level 
 

4. Provide periodic updates to the Audit Committee on the activities of the working group 
and the issues, assurance, learning, and improvement obtained including 
recommendations where appropriate. 

 
 
Membership 
 
The group will be led by Councillor xx and made up of xx others. This will be agreed by the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Resources 
 
The Audit and Risk service, which includes specialisms in Risk Management and Internal 
Audit, will provide support to the working group. Additional support will be identified as 
necessary. The working group will be able to discuss concerns with and receive explanations 
and action reports from risk, assurance and process owners.  
 
Reporting 
 
Activities, issues, assurance, learning, and improvement obtained by the Risk & Assurance 
Working Group will be reported to the Audit Committee by the working group lead Councillor 
after each meeting. 
 
Frequency 
 
The Working Group will meet four times per year. 
 

 
 

 

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Work Programme and Action Log
	5 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government Rapid Non Statutory Review of Nottingham City Council
	6 Report in the Public Interest and Action Plan - Update
	8 Companies Financial Governance Framework
	Appendix A - presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7


	9 Audit Committee Working Groups
	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 Companies Financial Governance Framework

